
1
Tuesday, September 13, 2016

STEUBEN COUNTY ADHOC OFFICE SPACE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, September 13, 2016

11:00 a.m.
Legislative Committee Room

Steuben County Office Building
Bath, New York

**MINUTES**

COMMITTEE: Robin K. Lattimer, Chair Carol A. Ferratella, Vice Chair John V. Malter
Brian C. Schu Scott J. Van Etten

STAFF: Jack K. Wheeler Mitchell Alger Kelly Penziul
Vicki Olin Alan Reed Jennifer Prossick
Pat Donnelly Andy Morse Eric Rose

LEGISLATORS: Joseph J. Hauryski

ABSENT: Gary D. Swackhamer

I. CALL TO ORDER

Ms. Lattimer called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. and asked Mr. Schu to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MOTION: APPROVING THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 10, 2016, AND MAY 23, 2016, MEETINGS MADE BY
MR. SCHU. SECONDED BY MRS. FERRATELLA. ALL BEING IN FAVOR. MOTION CARRIES 5-0.

III. NEW BUSINESS
A. County Manager

1. Floor Plans – Mr. Wheeler reviewed the footprint of the new building. It makes the most sense
to situate the building on the corner of Wilson Avenue and East Morris Street. The two County-owned houses
will be demolished and we will have 45 parking spaces available. The building itself will tie into the County
Office Building both architecturally and aesthetically.

Mr. Wheeler stated the first floor of the main building will house the Board of Elections. This space includes a
waiting room and counter with a closable window. There will be a room for ballot counting and storage, offices
for the Commissioners, open space for the other staff, and 2,200 square foot for the voting machines. The loading
dock will be accessible to both Board of Elections and Records. He stated for Records, there will be 17,000
square feet allocated for active records storage and will consist of high-density shelving. Our plan is to reuse the
current high-density shelving that we have at the Old Health Care Facility. There will be an office for Records, a
utility room and a lobby. We do have room on the first floor for a security station if we need one. That will
depend on what the State requires and reimbursement.

Mr. Wheeler stated the second floor will house Cooperative Extension and conference space. The square footage
for Cooperative Extension will be about the same as they currently have. They have 18 staff. The space will
include a demo kitchen, which will be a shared space with the conference center. We will move Public Works
into the Cooperative Extension space in the County Office Building. Then we will be able to talk about moving
all of the court related functions to the third floor of the County Office Building. The conference center in the
new building has the ability to be subdivided. The large space will accommodate 150 seated and 100 in a
classroom style. The smaller space will be able to accommodate about 40. Building and Grounds will continue to
schedule the use of the conference rooms. This in turn will open up the conference space in the County Office



2
Tuesday, September 13, 2016

Building. The Veterans Service Agency will most likely move into the space that Board of Elections currently
occupies in the County Office Building. There will be cupola on the roof for the building mechanicals.

Mr. Wheeler stated the Records facility at the farm will be 4,300 square feet. This will include a small office
space and an area for shipping and receiving. This building will be used to store inactive records.

2. Estimated Costs – Mr. Wheeler stated we added a third column to the preliminary design
development summary. This column is for alternatives for a building-wide generator. The County Office
Building only has a generator for emergency lighting, the data room and the refrigerators in Public Health used to
store vaccines. The $250,000 for a building-wide generator for the new building would power everything in the
event of a power outage or natural disaster. When we first started, our starting number was $8.65 million. That
includes the purchase of high-density storage and furniture. If we purchase the generator, the total cost is $9.1
million. We have already paid $115,000 for design fees, and the original budget included $440,000 for that.

Mrs. Ferratella asked what about the energy credits that Mr. Malter brought up at the last meeting? Mr. Wheeler
replied Labella is still looking into that. Anything we get would reduce the price. He stated we also included
$100,000 for a clerk of the works. The only other cost would be if we paid for a construction manager, which
would be about $300,000. We would budget the high-density storage in the 2017 budget and the furniture in the
2018 budget.

3. Bonding – Mr. Wheeler stated the only action item we need at this time is for bonding. There are
multiple arguments for how to pay. The first option is we have a good fund balance and could pay for the project
in cash. The second option is because our debt is minimal; we could bond the entire thing. The third option is to
bond half and pay the other half in cash.

Mr. Donnelly stated the interest rates have dropped ¼ point and are now at 1.75 percent. You still have six
months before we commit to do anything. We do have very good credit. Mr. Hauryski stated that he would like
to see a decision this month. Mr. Wheeler commented this will need to go to the Full Board.

Mr. Schu stated he likes the thought of a ten-year bond at 1.75 percent, with the option of paying half cash. Mr.
Van Etten stated we should never use that much cash at any one time. At those interest rates, we should at least
bond half. Mr. Wheeler stated his personal thought is to borrow $5 million.

Mr. Malter stated we do not know where the interest rates will go. You spend more cash based on the rate of
return. Mr. Schu stated that he thinks we have to borrow. Mrs. Ferratella stated we are not earning anything on
the money we have. Mr. Wheeler commented it is a risk tolerance question. Mr. Donnelly stated there are no call
features on these bonds.

MOTION: RECOMMENDING OPTION A FOR THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS IN THE AMOUNT OF
$5,000,000 FOR TEN YEARS AT A RATE OF 1.75 PERCENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEW
OFFICE BUILDING AND RECORDS STORAGE FACILITY MADE BY MR. SCHU. SECONDED BY MRS.
FERRATELLA. ALL BEING IN FAVOR. MOTION CARRIES 5-0. Resolution Required.

4. Construction Timeline – Mr. Van Etten asked with regard to the overall timing, what is the goal
by the end of the year? Mr. Wheeler replied within the next couple of weeks the detailed design will be fully
complete. The numbers presented today are conservative. We will go out to bid for a construction manager in the
late fall, and by that time, we will be in the final design stage. He anticipates going out to bid for construction
during the first quarter of 2017.

Mr. Van Etten asked if the bids come in and they are 30 percent higher than anticipated, how much will we have
spent up to that point to say no? Mr. Wheeler replied probably between $200,000 - $300,000. Our view right
now is in the County Office Building, the DA will move to Public Works, Public Works will move to Cooperative



3
Tuesday, September 13, 2016

Extension, the Public Defender will move to the DA and Veterans will move to Elections. We will do much of
that work utilizing Buildings & Grounds.

Mr. Van Etten asked do you have any idea what the cost would be to add a third floor to the new building at a
later date? Mr. Wheeler replied it was significant, in the millions. That is putting up the structural steels and
building a shell.

5. Hornell Space Update – Mr. Wheeler stated we have been working with the County Clerk and
looking at the space in North Hornell. We will give the State a rough sketch of this building and what we would
envision. Overall, the County Clerk thinks that space will work.

MOTION: TO ADJOURN MADE BY MRS. FERRATELLA. SECONDED BY MR. MALTER. ALL BEING IN
FAVOR. MOTION CARRIES 5-0.

Respectfully Submitted by

Amanda L. Chapman
Deputy Clerk
Steuben County Legislature


